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PASEGURUHAN NG MGA NAGLILINGKOD SA PAMAHALAAN 
(GOVERNMENT SERVICE INSURANCE SYSTEM) 
Financial Center, Roxas Blvd., Pasay City, 1308 
 

 

Supplemental Bid Bulletin No.  2 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDER AND GENERAL GUIDELINES 
on the  

DISPOSITION OF GSIS ACQUIRED ASSETS 
 

September 16, 2014 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
 
This bid bulletin is issued to give updates and clarify the issues raised by various bidders. This 
shall form an integral part of the Bid Documents. 
 
It is conclusively presumed that in the preparation of its Bid, the Bidder has taken into account 
the information and procedures set forth in the Instructions to Bidder and General Guidelines 
and each Supplemental Bulletin. 

 QUESTIONS  ANSWERS 
 

1 
 

With regards to the cash sale of the GSIS 
assets, may I respectfully request for a 2 - 4 
week extension of the bidding date due to the 5-
day cash payment terms? The amount to be 
raised is not a small amount and may need 
some time to procure.  
 

  

The Bid Date will not be moved to a later 
date. The five (5) business days within which 
to settle the balance of the Bid Price is 
reckoned from the receipt of the Notice of 
Award by the winning bidder, and not from 
the Bid Date. The highest bidder is already 
identified on the bid date, therefore, the 
highest bidder has more than five (5) 
business days to raise the needed cash 
payment. The following is the timeline for the 
Bidding Process: 
 

 
 

 

2 
 

We purchased a TOR and registered as 
“Company A”. 
 
With the actual bidding, we intend to use 
another company (e.g., “Company B”) which will 
comply with all the eligibility requirements. Can 
we change the registered name to Company B? 
Or are we required to buy another set of TOR for 
Company B? 
 

  

No, you cannot change the registered name 
under which the TOR was purchased. The 
privilege to bid is non-transferable. Only 
companies which registered and paid the 
joining fee shall be allowed to bid.  
 
In this case, “Company B”, shall need to buy 
another set of Terms of Reference (TOR) and 
pay the joining fee. 
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 QUESTIONS  ANSWERS 
 

3 
 

Are there any existing or pending claims of 
ownership or possession on any of the 
properties being offered? 

  

None. GSIS is not aware of any pending 
claims of ownership. Regarding possession, 
please refer to answer in number 4 below. 
 

 

4 
 

Are there any occupants, legal or otherwise, on 
any of the properties or portions thereof? 
 

  

Fort Bonifacio Lot 7-4 is currently being 
leased as staging area, for which lease shall 
expire on November 20, 2014. 
 

 

5 
 

Post Qualification documents stated on page 8 
of the Bidding Rules and Procedures, 
specifically the 2014 quarterly business tax 
returns stamped and received by the Bureau of 
Internal Revenue (BIR). Is “business tax returns” 
the same as “income tax returns”? 

  

Yes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6 
 

Item V.2. Minimum Qualification. Is there any 
document we need to prepare and submit to 
substantiate or prove that the corporation meets 
the minimum qualification (i.e., 60% of its capital 
is owned by Filipinos)? 

 
Item V.4. Conflict of Interest. Is there any 
document we need to prepare and submit to 
substantiate or prove that the bidder is 
independent from other companies joining the 
bid? 

  

None. All eligibility requirements contained in 
the first envelope as stated in V.7.b.i.a are 
sufficient. 
 
 
 
A Sworn Affidavit and other documents may 
be required as post qualification requirements 
to prove that the bidder is independent from 
other companies which joined the bid. 
 
 

 

7 
 

Item V.4.a. Define further or qualify the terms 
“control” and/or “controlling shareholders.” 
 

  

Controlling Shareholder means a shareholder 
who owns more than half of the shares or 
majority of the outstanding shares in a 
company, or someone who owns less than 
majority but has a significant number of 
remaining shares in the company, who 
participates in the company’s management or 
influences the company’s operations and 
decision-making. 
 

 

8 
 

Item V.7 (i.c). Up to what level would this 
include? 
 

  

As indicated under V.7.b.i.c of the TOR, the 
sworn affidavit that the Bidder is not related to 
any member of the GSIS Board of Trustees, 
Investment Bids and Awards Committee 
(IBAC), Technical Working Group (TWG), or 
IBAC Secretariat, by consanguinity or affinity 
should be up to the third civil degree.  
 

 

9 
 

What is the bid form number to be indicated in 
the bidding form? Is it the assigned number of 
the TOR? 
 

  

Yes. 
 

 

10 
 

How many originals and copies are needed for 
each submission of Eligibility Documents? Do 
these copies have to be certified true by the 
authorized representatives of the Bidder? Or 
would mere photocopies suffice? 
 

  

For the Eligibility Documents, one certified 
true copy by the Corporate Secretary for 
Corporation and authorized bidder for 
Individual Buyers.   
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Note that each Qualified Bidder shall not be allowed to submit more than one (1) Bid for the 
same property. Neither shall joint Bids between two (2) or more Qualified Bidders be allowed. 
 

The Bidders are enjoined to visit the GSIS Website (www.gsis.gov.ph) on a regular basis for 

updates or Supplemental Bid Bulletins. 

 

For guidance and information of all concerned. 

 

 

(Sgd) GRACITA GILDA V. BOCANEGRA 

Chairperson 

Investment Bids and Awards Committee 


